
  
 
 
The Chemung County Library District, with 
neighborhood libraries in Big Flats, the 
Bookmobile, Elmira, Horseheads, Van Etten, 
West Elmira, and on the web at 
www.ccld.lib.ny.us 

 

 

Agenda 
 

The May 2018 meeting of the Board of Trustees of the Chemung County Library District will be held will 
be held on Thursday, May 17th, 2018 at 6:00 pm at the Steele Memorial Library, 101 E. Church St., 
Elmira, NY 14901. The agenda for the meeting is listed below.  If you are unable to attend, please inform 
Ms. Kappanadze  (607-259-2646), Mrs. Santulli (733-8607), or Mr. Shaw (733-8611).   

 
1.  Call to order  
2.  Pledge of allegiance 
3. Board Actions 
 a) Election of Board Vice-President  
4.  Approval of minutes (document #2018-23)   
5.  Treasurer’s report 
 a) Financial report (document 2018-24)  
 b) Report of Unpaid Bills Detail (document 2018-25)  
6.  Correspondence  
7.  President’s report  
8.  Director’s Report 

Consent Item: Approval of Personnel Actions (Appendix C).  
Resolved that the CCLD Board of Trustees approve Personnel actions as submitted. 
Consent Item: Approval of Hotspot Policy  
Resolved that the CCLD Board of Trustees approve the Hotspot Policy as submitted. 

9.  Committee reports:   
a)  Executive Committee (Kappanadze)  
 1)  Report of the Committee meeting (document 2018-26) 
b)  Budget & Finance Committee (Schamel) 
 1)  Report of the Committee meeting (document 2018-27)  

 c)  Building & Grounds Committee (Muldoon) 
 1)  Report of the Committee meeting  (document 2018-28) 
 Consent Item: Approval of Addendum for Consultant Services. 
 Resolved that the CCLD Board of Trustees approver the addendum for Kim Bolan to proivde 

additional design services for the Teen Space. 
 d) Personnel Committee (Kappanadze)  
 e) Election and Continuity Committee (Rogan) 
       Nominee for 11th District to serve until next election  
10. Executive Session 
11.  Old business      
12.  New business 
13.  Period for public expression  
14.  Adjournment  



(Minutes of the APRIL 19, 2018 meeting of the Chemung County Library District Board 
of Trustees. Document #2018-23) 
 
The meeting was called to order at 6:00pm by President Marge Kappanadze. Present were 
Pat Silvernail, Ann Hayes, Pamela Larnard, Bonnie Chollet, Will Wehling, Jack Schamel, 
Lillian White, Phyllis Rogan, Karl Schwesinger, Martha Smith, Jared Myers and Tim 
Blandford.  Excused:  Michael Muldoon. Also present were Joan Santulli and Ron Shaw, the 
Library District’s Administration and Katherine Stickler, CPA with Mengel, Metzger, Barr 
& Company. 
 
Before the meeting began, Mr. Shaw introduced two of the West Elmira Library staff 
members: Michelle Barrett – Supervisor and Ahnece Hancock.  Both shared a little of their 
responsibilities at the library. 
 
The meeting was turned over to Kathy Stickler to review a draft copy of the 2017 Library 
District Audit Results.  She reviewed the Required Communications and Internal Control 
issues.  The document states that during the audit they did not identify any deficiencies in 
Internal Control and they found no material weaknesses. She then reviewed the financial 
statement in some detail. She stated that the draft copy will be the final copy.  Mr. Schamel 
moved, seconded by Ms. Smith to accept the 2017 Audit report of CCLD Finances.  VOTE: 
Unanimously Approved.  
 
Board Actions. Mr. Schwesinger moved, seconded by Mr. Blandford to accept the 
resignation of Venitra Clark (11th District) with regrets.  VOTE: Unanimously Approved.  
The approval of a new Board Vice-President will be tabled until the next meeting.  
 
Minutes.  The minutes of the March 2018 meeting (Document #2018-17) were presented 
for board review. Ms. Larnard moved, seconded by Ms. Chollet to approve the minutes as 
submitted in writing.  VOTE: Unanimously Approved.   It was noted regarding the computer 
game “RoBlox” that the Patron Code of Conduct covers any patron’s actions while playing 
the game and the game will be added back the computers in the Juv Department.  
 
Financial  Report. The March 31, 2018 Financial Report (Document #2018-18) was 
presented for board review. Mr. Schamel moved, seconded by Mr. Wehling to approve the 
Financial Report as distributed.  VOTE: Unanimously Approved.    
 
Report of Unpaid Bills (Document #2018-19). Mr. Schamel moved, seconded by Mr. 
Blandford that the board authorize the payment of the unpaid bills dated 4/11/18 – General 
Fund - $11,994.58 as distributed in writing. VOTE: Unanimously Approved.    

 
Correspondence.   Received via email – From Brian Hildreth, Director of STLS, stating his 
opinion that the Maker Faire was an impact event that his staff will plan on assisting with in 
a greater way in the future.  Also received from STLS, their Annual 2017 Report and 
confirmation of the Spring CE event being held at CCC on June 8th; which is a joint effort 
between STLS and CCLD.  A letter was received from the City of Elmira requesting that the 
Water Board election be held at the Steele Memorial Library on June 5th – room has been 
booked for them.   
 
President’s Report.  Ms. Kappanadze gave her personal praise for everyone involved in the 
planning and execution of the Maker Faire event.  Mr. Schamel moved, seconded by Ms. 
Smith that the President send a thank you letter from the board to Deb Brimmer and the 



CCLD staff who made the Maker Faire a successful public event.  VOTE: Unanimously 
Approved.   
 
President Kappanadze thanked board members who contributed to the staff gifts for 
National Library Worker’s Day and also thanked those who attended the Trustee orientation 
with Margo Gustina (STLS).  She stated that all board members should review the 
documents on the checklist which was sent out prior to the orientation session.  One topic 
discussed by Ms. Gustina was the responsibility that board members have for outreach and 
advocacy.  Ms. Kappanadze stated it would be acceptable for CCLD to have an Advocacy 
Committee whose mission would be to identify community events that trustees could attend 
on behalf of CCLD to hand out packets of information regarding the Library District and its 
events. This would be an ongoing Committee which would possibly need to have a Charter.  
She will send an email requesting volunteers to serve on this Committee.  
 
Ms. Kappanadze stated that one thing this board has not done in previous years is to have a 
board “self-evaluation”.  STLS has tools that they can offer to accomplish this evaluation.  
She will request more information from STLS for this evaluation process.  
 
The CCLD Board Member Posters are outdated.  Mr. Schamel and Mr. Schwesinger offered 
to serve on a Committee to determine the best way to proceed to be able to continue to have 
the poster updated on an annual basis.  Mr. Schamel moved, seconded by Ms. Hayes that he 
and Mr. Schwesinger work on a plan to present to the board regarding updating the poster.  
VOTE: Unanimously Approved. 
 
Director’s Report.  Mr. Shaw stated that he heard from several staff members who were 
grateful for the recognition and gift received from the board during National Library Week. 
 
A question was raised about the Interactive TV on the wall near the café area.  It is currently 
being used to highlight the MakerSpace/Tinker Lab.  Once the interactive software has been 
received and installed, users will be able to navigate through schedules, programs, classes, 
services and see promotional items. 
 
Regarding STLS, the Central Library Committee is looking at the best way to utilize Central 
Library Development and Book Aid which is given to the Steele Memorial Library (the 
Central Library for STSL). Usage of the JobNow resource has declined and the Committee 
is considering a recommendation to eliminate this electronic resource.  They are also 
looking at the amount of funding used for the Zinio (electronic) magazines.  Small libraries 
in the STLS service are have requested that Ancestry.com be able to be used throughout 
STLS. The cost for this would be almost $38,000 for one year and CCLD has voiced our 
displeasure in considering this option.   
 
Consent Item: Approval of Personnel Actions (Appendix C).  
Resolved by Mr. Schamel, seconded by Ms. Chollet that the CCLD Board of Trustees 
approves the Personnel actions as submitted in writing.  VOTE: Unanimously Approved. 
 
Consent Item:  Approval of the Defibrillator.   The Zoll AED Plus machine with a wall 
cabinet and training of staff is estimated to cost less than $2,400.  Mr. Wehling moved, 
seconded by Ms. Hayes to approve of the purchase and training of the Defibrillator as 
submitted.   VOTE:  Unanimously Approved.  
 
 



The Director's Report (Appendix A) and the CCLD Staff Reports (Appendix B) for last 
month were submitted in writing to the board.  
 

Executive Committee.  The report of the Executive Committee was presented in writing to 
the board (Document #2018-20). There was nothing further to report. 

Budget & Finance Committee.  The report of the Budget & Finance Committee meeting 
was presented in writing to the board (Document #2018-21). There was nothing further to 
report. 
 
Buildings & Grounds Committee. The report of the Buildings & Grounds Committee 
meeting was presented in writing to the board (Document #2018-22).  Mr. Schwesinger 
reported concerning the Teen Space that Kim Bolan has expressed that her company be 
designated as the Interior Designer for the project – choosing the furniture, fabrics, wall 
color, flooring, etc.  She has requested that her involvement be defined in the scope of the 
project and that a separate contract be drawn up for this portion of the project.  CCLD is 
expecting a contract from Foor & Associates for being the Project Manager.  Mr. Shaw has 
met with a representative from Dimon & Bacorn regarding the need to move shelving prior 
to the start of the project.   
 
Regarding the 2018/19 State Construction funding, the possibility of CCLD applying for 
funding for a new Children’s Area at the Steele Library may need to be split between 2 years 
of grants.  Updated estimates are being requested. 
 
Personnel Committee. Ms. Kappanadze stated that the Committee has compiled the report 
of the Director’s evaluation. They will meet with Mr. Shaw the second Tuesday of May and 
will present the report to the board at its May meeting.  
 
New Business.  It was noted that the Friends of CCLD’s book sale is next weekend. 
 
Ms. Rogan stated that upon learning that STLS will no longer be doing processing of our 
library materials, she questioned the possibility of having Ingram (the company most books 
are purchased from) provide standardized labeling for CCLD.  Mr. Shaw stated that this is 
already being discussed and that representatives from Ingram will be present at the June 
Continuing Ed day to speak to staff about what they have to offer in processed materials.  
 
Public Expression.  None 
 
Executive Session. Mr. Schamel moved, seconded by Ms. Smith to move into Executive 
Session to review and discuss the Tentative Agreement between CCLD and CSEA and the 
2018 Contract between CCLD and its Administrative Assistant. VOTE: Unanimously 
Approved.  Mr. Schamel moved, seconded by Mr. Wehling to come out of Executive 
Session.  VOTE: Unanimously Approved.  
 
Ms. Chollet moved, seconded by Mr. Blandford to approve the Tentative Agreement by and 
between the Chemung County Library District and CSEA, Local 1000 AFSCME AFL-CIO 
for fiscal years 2018-2021 as submitted in writing. VOTE: Unanimously Approved. 
 
Ms. Silvernail moved, seconded by Mr. Blandford to give Joan Santulli, CCLD’s 
Administrative Assistant a raise of 2% for this fiscal year, said raise to be retroactive to 
January 1, 2018.  VOTE: Unanimously Approved. 



 
 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 7:41pm. The next regular meeting of the board will be held 
on Thursday, May 17th, 2018 at 6:00pm at the Steele Memorial Library, 101 East Church 
Street, Elmira, New York. 



















Document #2018-26      
 
Report of the May 2nd, 2018 meeting of the Executive Committee of the 
Chemung County Library District:   
 
Attending the meeting from the Executive Committee were Marge Kappanadze and Jack 
Schamel; and Ronald Shaw and Joan Santulli, CCLD management. Other board members 
in attendance were Pat Silvernail, Phyllis Rogan, Jared Myers, Lillian White and Mike 
Muldoon.  
 
UNPAID BILLS:  Ms. Santulli submitted the Unpaid Bill lists dated 5/2/18 for the 
General fund - $37,678.00 and Grant Fund - $307.41. There was NO QUORUM of the 
board so these invoices will be paid late and will be approved at the May 17th meeting of 
the board.  
 
President Report. Ms. Kappanadze stated that the letter thanking Deb Brimmer and the 
CCLD staff who worked the successful Maker Faire event was given to her on April 20th.  
 
Regarding the new poster for current board members, she stated that Jan Kather 
has agreed to photograph board members whose photo needs to be updated on the 
poster.  
 
Director Shaw reported on the following:  
Fines- Montour Falls Library is dropping their late book fines. This matter was 
discussed at our department head meeting and staff would like the board to 
consider ending fines for Juvenile materials. A report on how much we receive 
from Juvenile fines is being compiled and will be sent to the board when 
available. Other libraries have seen an increase in circulation as patrons feel better 
about returning to the library. CCLD would still charge for lost and damaged 
items and juvenile items checked out on an adult card/vice versa.  
Summer Enrichment- This year CCLD, specifically the Steele Library are 
partnering with the Southern Tier Food bank, the Chemung County Hunger Task 
Force, and EOP in an effort to help establish and support what the conglomerate 
is tentatively calling Summer Enrichment.  This collaboration is an attempt to 
contribute to the National Summer Food Service Program, to help remove the 
stigma of receiving free food that hinders and hurts some community members 
and to add additional enrichment activities (above and beyond providing 
nutritional sustenance). This summer Steele Library is going to become a Snack 
Site.  Snacks will be offered at twice a day following the morning children's 
programs and before our afternoon tween/teen programs, Monday through Friday. 
The program will begin June 25th (the same week that Summer Reading Club 
starts) and go through Aug 10th.  We plan on serving the snacks from about 
10:30-11:30 and 2:30-3:30 in the youth department. 
Meeting Room- At the department head meeting, staff also discussed asking the 
board to consider the possibility of charging groups that aren't non-profit $25 for 
use of the meeting room. One of the reasons is the heavy use of the rooms; and 
the fact that some meetings have turned out to be sales presentations "Essential 
Oils". This would free up the rooms for more library and non-profit use. The staff 



also want to have the board consider the  booking the meeting rooms 3 months in 
advance instead of 6; allowing staff more liberty to book programs. 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 6:23pm.  The next meeting of the Executive Committee of the 
Chemung County Library District will be held on Wednesday, June 6th, 2018 at 6pm in 
the Petrie Conference Room of the Steele Memorial Library.   



Document #2018-27 
 
Report of the May 9th, 2018 meeting of the Budget & Finance Committee of the Chemung 
County Library District.  
 
Attending the meeting were CCLD board members Jack Schamel and Lillian White. Also 
attending were Joan Santulli and Ron Shaw, CCLD Administration. The meeting opened at 
8:00am.  
 
Ms. Santulli presented the April 30th, 2018 Financial Report to the Committee. The Report will 
be forwarded to the full CCLD board for its consideration.  
 
Ms. Santulli presented the Unpaid Bills Detail dated 5/8/18 for the General Fund - $17,667.82 
and dated 5/2/18 -  $37,678.00 and from the Grant Fund dated 5/2/18 - $307.41. The Unpaid 
Bills Details will be forwarded to the full CCLD board for its consideration.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:15am.  The next meeting of the Budget & Finance Committee will 
be held on Wednesday, June 13th, 2018 at 8:00am in the Petrie Conference Room of the Steele 
Memorial Library.   



Document #2018-28  
 
Report of the May 2nd, 2018 meeting of the Buildings & Grounds Committee of the Chemung County 
Library District 
 
The meeting opened at 5:30pm. Present were Mr. Muldoon and Mr. Schwesinger. Also attending were Joan 
Santulli and Ronald Shaw, CCLD Management.   
 
The Committee received reports on the following: 
 
Teen Section.  The Committee reviewed an Addendum to Kimberly Bolan & Associates contract.  The 
Addendum includes assisting Foor & Associates as needed; finalizing furniture, furnishings, flooring & paint 
colors with staff and working with vendors to place the orders.  The charges for this additional work are 
$3,500 plus an option of a one-day onsite visit to oversee furniture installation at a cost of $1,200 plus 
expenses.  The Committee recommends that the board approve the addendum to the Bolan contract with the 
option of the on-site visit.  CCLD has yet to receive the contract from Bob Butcher of Foor & Associates and 
is still awaiting the estimate from Dimon & Bacorn regarding the moving of shelving.  
 
NYS Budget for Construction Projects.  Mr. Shaw stated that he does not intend to apply for funding in 2018. 
He wants to wait to apply for any additional funding for Construction Projects until the Teen Area has been 
completed.  Lessons learned from this project can then be utilized in applying for funding for a possible 
Children’s Area at the Steele Library.  
 
OutDoor Beautification. The Committee reviewed a report from the Outdoor Beautification Committee that 
listed ideas for banners, planters, trash cans and ash trays that will assist in making the exterior of the Steele 
Library more welcoming.  The report is for informational purposes only at this point.  
 
Mr. Shaw stated that he has received an estimate from Elmira Structures for renovation of the Staff Room at 
Steele.  He would like to schedule this project to start after the Teen Space has been completed.  
 
The meeting adjourned at 5:45pm.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 The next regular meeting of the Buildings & Grounds Committee will be held on Wednesday, June 6th, 2018 
at 5:30pm in the Petrie Conference Room at the Steele Memorial Library. 
 





In or
mob
prog
 
Eligi
A Ho
Tier 
a gov
 
Borr
Rese
emai
may 
perso
perso
Getti
 
Retu
Patro
be m
borro
direc
retur
that r
 
Dam
A rep
by th
repla
 
Devi
The 
perso
The 

 U
 A

Plea
lendi

____

Print

rder to prom
ile WiFi Ho

gram with un

ibility 
otspot may b
Library Sys
vernment iss

rowing and 
ervations for
il, or in pers
be borrowe

on living in 
on at the Ste
ing Started G

urning 
ons with ove

marked lost, t
ower will be
ctly to the Re
rn a hotspot 
resulted from

maged or Lo
placement fe
he Library D
acement cost

ice usage 
Chemung C
onal informa
following be

Use of the In
Abuse of equ

se print and 
ing program

___________

ted Name  

 

Ch
10
El
(6

M

mote access to
tspots.  The 

nlimited data

be checked o
stem (STLS)
sued ID and 

Reserving 
r hotspots ca
on at the Lib
d by a house
the same ho

eele Memori
Guide, and a

erdue hotspo
the device w
e charged the
eference De
to the book 
m it being re

ost Items 
fee of $150 w
Director or hi

t. 

County Libra
ation shared 
ehaviors can

nternet in any
uipment and

sign your na
m: 

__________

 

hemung Cou
01 E. Church
lmira, NY 14

607)733-917

Mobile WiFi 

o online reso
Internet serv

a at 4G LTE 

out by any C
) library card
sign this agr

n be made o
brary. Hotsp
ehold at a tim
usehold mor
al Library re

a copy of this

ots will be ch
will be deacti
e replacemen
sk at Steele 
drop will be

eturned this w

will be charg
is designee.  

ary District is
over the Int

n result in the

y way which
/or frequent 

ame below to

___________

  

unty Library
h St. 
4901 
3 

Hotspot Ci

ources, the C
vice for the h
speeds. Up t

CCLD patron
d in good sta
reement at th

on a first-com
ots circulate

me and a hot
re than once 
eference desk
s policy. 

harged $5.00
ivated (it can
nt cost of $1
Memorial L

e assessed a f
way. 

ged for a lost
A lost or da

s not respons
ternet. Hotsp
e suspension

h violates fed
late return o

o indicate th

__________

Signatu

y District 

 
irculation P

 
Chemung Co
hotspots is p
to 10 device

n, 18 years o
anding (no fi
he time of ch

me, first-serv
e for a 14-day
tspot cannot 
within a 30 

k. Each hots

0 per day up 
nnot be react
50. Due to t

Library and m
fee of $5 and

t hotspot. Th
amaged case

sible for info
pot users are 
n of hotspot p

deral, state, o
of devices 

hat you have 

___________

ure 

olicy and A

ounty Library
provided by 
es may be co

or older, with
nes of $5 or
heckout. 

ved basis, up
y loan perio
be borrowed
day period. 

spot circulate

to $50. Hots
tivated by an
their fragile n
may not be p
d will respon

he fee for a d
e or charger w

ormation acc
encouraged
privileges an

or municipa

read and ag

__________

 

Agreement 

y District (C
Sprint throu

onnected to t

h a valid CCL
r more). All b

p to 60 days 
d (no renew
d by the sam
Hotspots m

es in a case w

spots not ret
nyone other 
nature, hotsp

placed in the 
nsible for an

damaged hot
will be billed

cessed using
d to follow sa
nd/or crimin

l laws 

gree to the te

___________

 

CCLD) is circ
ugh the Mobi
the hotspot a

LD or other 
borrowers m

in advance b
wals). Only on
me patron, or
must be check

with an AC 

turned after 3
than the libr
pots must be
book drop. 

ny damage to

tspot will be 
d at the curre

g this device 
afe Internet p
nal prosecuti

erms of CCL

__________

 

culating 
ile Beacon 
at once. 

Southern 
must present 

by phone, 
ne hotspot 
r another 
ked out in 
Adapter, 

30 days will
rary) and the
e returned 
Patrons who

o the item 

determined 
ent market 

or for 
practices. 
on: 

LD’s hotspot 

___________

Date 

e 

o 

_ 



Election and Continuity Committee Report 
May 2018 
 
The committee is preparing to start the election process for 2018. We are assuming that the 
CCLD Charter amendment will not be passed before the election so that we will have to conduct 
the election on Election Day. Also, we are planning to use the same structure as last year, with 
two polling places (Steele Memorial Library and Horseheads Free Library). 
 
The committee is recommending that the Board approve the following resolutions: 
 
Resolution 1: The Board of Trustees of the Chemung County Library District hereby authorizes 
the Election and Continuity Committee and the Election Commissioner to expend funds not to 
exceed $4000 for the purpose of conducting the election. After the election, the Committee will 
submit to the Board a financial report detailing those expenditures. 
 
Resolution 2: The Board of Trustees of the Chemung County Library District hereby appoints 
Sue Cook as Election Commissioner with the same duties and responsibilities as last year at a 
fixed fee of $1500. 
 



 

  

 
 
The Chemung County Library District, with 
neighborhood libraries in Big Flats, the 
Bookmobile, Elmira, Horseheads, Van Etten, 
West Elmira, and on the web at 
www.ccld.lib.ny.us 

 

 

To: CCLD Board of Trustees  

 

From: Ronald W. Shaw, Director 

 

Date: May 10, 2018 

 

Subject: Approval of Personnel Actions  

 

 

Promotions: 

N/A 

 

Change FT/PT Status: 

N/A 

 

End of Probationary Period- Permanent Appointment: 

N/A 

 

New Hires: 

N/A 

 

Resignations: 

Pat Cuthbert - Retiring effective May 24th 

 

Terminations: 

Katia Newton- effective February 23rd 

 

Leave: 

N/A 

 

Step Increases: 

Sue Schoeffler - Senior Library Clerk to Step 8 

Jeff Mathews - P/T Library Clerk to Step 2 

Chris Russo - P/T Library Clerk to Step 6 

 


	Agenda 2018-05
	Document 2018-23
	Document 2018-24
	Document 2018-25
	Document 2018-26
	Document 2018-27
	Document 2018-28
	April Book Budget
	hotspot
	May 2018 Election and Continuity Committee Report
	Appendix C Personnel Actions May 2018

